
Adopted:  October 22, 2009 – As Written 

 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 

 
MINUTES 

 
OCTOBER 8, 2009 

 
  
 PAGES 
 
 
  1  Workshop – Proposed Amendments to §131 –  
    Subdivision Regulations 



Adopted:  October 22, 2009 – As Written 

CONWAY PLANNING BOARD  
 

MINUTES 
 

OCTOBER 8, 2009 
 

A meeting of the Conway Planning Board was held on Thursday, October 8, 2009 beginning at 7:01 
pm at the Conway Town Office in Center Conway, NH. Those present were:  Acting Chair, Martha 
Tobin; Selectmen’s Representative, Robert Drinkhall; Secretary, Patricia Sell; Ted Sares; Steven 
Hartmann; David Sordi; Planning Director, Thomas Irving; and Recording Secretary, Holly Meserve.   
 
WORKSHOP – PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO §131 – SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 
 
Mr. Sares asked what the implications of the changes to the definitions are.  Mr. Irving stated that 
these are terms that are being applied and being used.  Mr. Irving stated that most of the definitions 
differ or contradict other Town regulations.  Mr. Irving stated that this can be confusing.  Mr. 
Hartman asked if under the curb definition if curbing has to be granite.  Mr. Irving stated the 
regulations require granite curbing along roadways.     
 
Mr. Irving stated that the definition of a driveway limits access to a multi-unit building of not more 
than six units.  Mr. Irving stated that this dates back to before Zoning and may have been a way to 
limit density and scale of development.  Mr. Irving stated if a driveway can service Wal-Mart and 
Lowe’s why it cannot serve more than six units.  Ms. Sell asked if the length increased.  Mr. Irving 
answered in the negative.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked under the definition of pavement what happens if the material is something other 
than hot laid bituminous pavement.  Mr. Irving stated current terminology is to use this material and 
that is our regulation.  Ms. Sell asked under the definition of right-of-way, how wide a strip is.  Mr. 
Irving stated that it depends on the strip as it could be 50-feet, 66-feet and in some cases 100-feet. 
 
Other suggested changes to definitions are as follows:  remove “sub” from the word “subbase” in the 
definition of Aggregate Subbase; spell out “ITE” to Institute of Transportation Engineers in the 
definition of Average Daily Traffic; and change “embankment” to “fill slope” in the definition of 
shoulder.  
 
Mr. Sares asked under §131-24.X, why was “public” changed to “municipal”.  Mr. Irving stated the 
intent was to make sure it was government systems.   
 
Mr. Irving read §131-29, Soil Suitability, and stated that this amends the provision to use the State 
standard for lot sizing.  Ms. Sell asked under §131-29.C why slopes were reduced to 25% from 35%.  
Mr. Irving stated steep slopes are sensitive and this provides more protection from erosion and this 
helps reduce the amount of steep slopes in a development.  Mr. Irving stated that it also protects more 
of the steep slopes the floodplain.  It was noted that “precinct” in §131-29.C should be changed to 
“municipal”. 
 
Mr. Irving stated §131-43.A is the provision that allows paper roads and staff, as well as the Conway 
Village Fire Chief, would like to see this eliminated.  Mr. Irving stated that this can cause hazards for 
emergency vehicles.  Mr. Irving stated that the Planning Board always has the right to waive the 
requirement.  Ms. Sell asked why this was being eliminated.  Mr. Irving stated that it promotes 

 
 



Adopted:  October 22, 2009 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – OCTOBER 8, 2009 

Page 2 of 2 
 

substandard roads.  Mr. Sordi asked if §131-43.D does the same thing.  Mr. Irving stated as long as it 
is accepted as a Town road, however, private roads not accepted as Town roads are not protected 
under §131-43.D.   
 
Ms. Sell stated that we all know that Olympic Road is a town road and asked if this will affect 
Olympic Lane.  Mr. Sares stated that changing this will have no impact on Olympic Lane.  Mr. Irving 
agreed and stated that this will prevent another Olympic Lane from being created.  Mr. Sares stated 
that he is against the Board of Selectmen’s recent ruling that Olympic Lane is a private road.  
 
Ms. Sell stated that she would like the Board to have the authority to waive this requirement.  Mr. 
Irving stated that the Board always has the right to waive any section of the ordinance.  Ms. Sell 
asked even with this section being eliminated.  Mr. Irving answered in the affirmative.  Ms. Sell 
asked why under §131-43.A, the four units is being removed.  Mr. Irving stated with the removal of 
§131-43.E it was no longer needed and this would follow the goal that everyone should get that 
standard.   
 
Mr. Sares asked under §131-48.D, what if you tear up a road and rebuild it.  Mr. Irving stated that it 
would be rebuilt at the new standard.  Mr. Sordi asked if it would be all to the side or just the ones 
their working on.  Mr. Irving answered just what they are working on.  Mr. Irving stated this is 
designed for subdivisions being created, but if rebuilding a road it would be reconstructed to this 
standard if it can be met.  Mr. Irving stated that he is not sure if this applies to existing roads or only 
to new roads being considered.  Mr. Irving stated that he would check to see if there is an exemption 
for the Town and the State. 
 
Ms. Sell asked under §131-67.A.5 if the expense for a geotechnical investigation would be on the 
developer.  Mr. Irving answered in the affirmative.  Ms. Tobin asked when that would be needed.  
Mr. Irving answered when the engineer or the inspector says we need one.   
 
After a brief discussion regarding §131-67, Street Standards, the Board asked Mr. Irving to request 
Paul DegliAngeli, Town Engineer, to be present at the next meeting to explain the remainder of the 
changes.   
 
It was suggested to change §131-67.E.(11) as follows:  “Upon acceptance of the road, a maintenance 
bond shall be provided to reserve funds to repair or reconstruct streets, which have become damaged 
due to latent defects in the street construction.  The maintenance bond shall remain in effect until two 
(2) years after acceptance and the bond value shall generally be twenty dollars ($20) per linear foot 
of roadway accepted.  The bond value is intended to approximately equal 10 percent of the cost to 
fully reconstruct the road.”.    
 
It was suggested under §131-67.H.(2) to remove the date of the ITE Trip Generation Manuel. 
 
Mr. Sares made a motion, seconded by Ms. Sell, to have a workshop on Article §131 on 
October 22, 2009 with Paul DegliAngeli.  Motion unanimously carried.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm.  
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Holly L. Meserve, Planning Assistant 






















































































































































